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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

We conduct our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e




(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”, to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(8) The Company is a Private Limited Company as per the Act. The requirement of payment of
managerial remuneration as per section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable.

(h) The modification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under section Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations provided to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in
its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise that
the Intermediary shall:

¢ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
* provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

* directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)




V.

vi.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. So, compliance with
respect to section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level and
master fields as it relates to accounting software used for maintaining general ledger, where
audit trail feature is not enabled at database level as described in Note 46 to the financial
statements.

Also, with respect to third-party operated software applications, in the absence of Service
Organisation Controls report on audit trail, as described in Note 46 to the financial statements,
we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature with respect to third-party
operated software applications was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in these software applications or whether there were any instances of
the audit trail feature being tampered with.

V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.109818W

Viral J. Shah

Partner
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Membership No.: 110120
UDIN: 24110120BKFQPO7153
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2024



(ii

(iii)

ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Réquirements of our Report of even date)

(i)(a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company is in the process of
updation of quantitative details and description details of additions during the year.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment

(c)

(d)

(e)

i) (a)

(b)

by which all the assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our
opinion, periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were physically verified during the vyear. According to the information and
explanations provided to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, as the Company does not own any
immovable properties. Hence, reporting under clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable,

As represented by the Management, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
Hence, reporting under clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification
of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size
of the Company and the nature of its business. Discrepancies if any, were less than 10% in
aggregate for each class of inventory and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores, in aggregate
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets of
the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not made any
investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. Hence, reporting clause (iii) (a) to (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.




(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
given any loan to directors. Hence, the requirements under Section 185 of the Act are not applicable.
The Company has made investments in a Company and it has complied with the requirements of
section 186.

(v) According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, as per the
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of the section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting
under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) We are informed that the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (I) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the
Company. Hence, clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess, Goods & Services Tax and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess,
Goods & Services Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no dues of Income-tax or
Sales tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added
tax which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence, clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender. Hence, reporting under clause (ix)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any
other lender.

(c) According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, there
s a term loan outstanding at the year end and the same was applied for the purpose for which the
loan was obtained.

(d) According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us no
funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.




(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer /debt .

instruments. Hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence, reporting under clause
(x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations provided to us, no

material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (xi)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company as required under section 177

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

of the Act. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints
received by the Company during the year under the vigil mechanism established by the parent
company for the Group.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause (xii)(a), (b) and (c) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company
and accordingly the requirements to report under clause (xiii) of paragraph 3 of the Order in so far as
it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, internal audit is not
applicable to the Company as per section 138 of the Act. Hence, clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to
its Directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.




Xvi)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

VAR5

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 45, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future via bility of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Based on the verification of the details provided, the criteria specified under section 135 of the Act is
not fulfilled and hence the requirement of spending on Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

hah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm R

Viral J.

Partner
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date to the Members of Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub- section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financials Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected




depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

V. C. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.109818W

%

Viral J. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 110120
UDIN: 24110120BKFQPO7153
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2024




HNykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited

{Amounts in ¥ milliens, except per share data and unless stated otherwise}

‘Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 50.94 34.43
Intangible assets 5 - -
Right of use assets 6 8.57 11.86
Financial assets
Investmants 7 0.00 0.00
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 2.71 1.91
Non-current tax assets {net) 8 - 7.96
Other non-current assets 9 0.49 1.54
Total non-current assets (A) 60.71 57.70
Current assets
Inventories 10 110.38 182.53
Financial assets
Trade receivables " 98.20 123.24
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - 4.50
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 13 200.00 -
Other financial assets 14 0.32 0.03
Other current assets 15 150.85 74.35
Total current ts (B) 559.76 384.65
Total assets (A+B) 620.47 442.35
Equity and Eabilities
Equlty
Equity share capital i6 10.00 10.00
Other equity 17 239.62 126.54
Total equity {A) 249.62 136.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 - Doy 3.61
Lease liabilities 19 3.88 7.62
Long term provisions 20 0.06 0.08
Tetal non-current liabilities (B) 3.85 11.28
Currant liabilities:
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 127.30 156.09
Lease liabilittes 22 3.73 5.50
Trade payables 23
-Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises 1.14 0.24
-Total outstanding dues of crediiors Othar than micro erterprises and 61.73 39.58
small enterprises
Cther financiat liabilities 24 144.84 84.02
Provisions 25 0.06 0.05
Contract liabiles 26 018 0.99
Other current liabilities 27 24.97 8.05
Current tax liabilities {net) ] 2.94 -
Total current fiabilities (C) 366.90 294.52
Total liabllities (B+L) 370.85 305.81
Total equity and liabilities {A+B+C) 62047 442,35

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For V. C. Shah & Co.

Charfered Accountants

ICAl Firm isteation Mo: 109818W
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited

Y

Vishal
Director
DIN 10048743
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024

Jagdish Dargar
Director
DIN 00278065

Placa: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
{Amounts in ¥ millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 27 882.37 605.61
Other income 28 1.02 1.73
Total lncome 883.39 607.34
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 57.62 132.96
Purchase of traded goods 30 198.30 28.14
Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods 31 14.52 2577
Employee benefits expense 32 32.14 28.90
Finance costs 33 11.78 17.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 11.47 8.63
Other expenses 35 406.11 274.65
Total expenses 731.94 516.40
Profit before fax 151.45 90.94
Tax expense:
Current tax 8 39.15 23.03
Deferred tax : 8 (0.79) {0.51)
Total tax expense 38.36 22.52
Profit after tax 113.09 68.42
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss .
Remeasurement gain on defined henefit liability {0.02) 0.02
Income tax relating to items that wilf not be reclassified to profit or 0.01 {0.01)
Cther Comprehensive income for the year {net of fax) {0.01} 0.01
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 113.08 68.43
Earnings per share of face value ¥ 10/- each 38 :
Basic 113.09 68.42
Diluted 113.09 68.42

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For V. C. Shah & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No: 109818W

/;’ém“‘\
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per Viral J. Shah Q‘%ﬁgsa ,,,cggy"j:f{//’ Vishal Gupta Jagdish Dargar
Partner o Director Director
Membership No: 110120 DIN 10048743 DIN 00278065
Place: Mumbai ' Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2024 Date: May 13, 2024 Date: May 15, 2024




Mykaa-KWK Beauty Private Limited
{Amounts [n % millicns, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year endad March 31, 2024
A. Equity share capifal:

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

No. of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2022 10,00,000 10.00
Izsue during the year - -
Ag at March 31, 2023 10,00,00H) 10.06
Issue during the vear - -
As at March 31, 2024 10.00,000 10.00
B. Other Equity:

Reserves & Surplus Other
Particulars Ca!:utai. Surplusf{Deficit) in comprehensive Total c‘rther
Contribution statement of profit . equity
income (OCD

from parent and loss
As at April 1, 2022 11.67 46.38 0.06 58.11
Net Prefit for the year - 68.42 - 68.42
Other comprehensive income - - 0. 0.01
Total comprehansive income - 68.42 0.01 68.43
Addition during the year -
As at March 31, 2023 11.67 i14.80 .07 126.54
Net Profit for the year 113.09 113.09
Other comprehensive income {0.01) {0.01)
Total comprehansive income . 113.09 {0.01} 113.08
Addition during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 11.67 227.89 0.06 239.62

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For ¥, C, Shah & Co,
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No: 109818W

Membership No: 110120

Place: Mumbai
Daie: May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited

Q

Vishal Gupta
Director
DIN 10048743

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024

Jagdish Dargar
Director
DIM 00278065

Flace: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited

{Amounts in T millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 151.45 90.94
Adjustments o recongcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Deprectation of property, plant & equipment and right-of-use assets 1147 8.51
Amortisation of intangible assets - Q.12
Interast expense and other finance costs 11.80 17.26
Provision for gratuity expense 0.02 0.02
Provision for leave compensated expense {0.02) {0.02)
Expected credit loss 1.35 -
Interest income {0.32) -
Ynrealised (gain}loss on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 0.5¢ {0.28)
Operating profit before working capital changes 176.25 116.54
Working capital adjustmants:
Decreasef(increase) in frade receivables 23.69 {116.74}
Decrease in inventories 72.14 27.66
Decrease in current financial asset 0.03 -
{Increase) in other current assatis {76.50} (.81}
Increasef(decrease) in trade payables 22.52 {(4.28)
{Decrease) in provisions {0.01) {0.00y
Increase in financial liabilities and contract liabilities 59.84 61.88
Inerease in other current liabilities 16.92 7.32
Net cash flow from operations 294.88 82.55
Payment of taxes (net of refund) {28.25) {32.64)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 266.63 49.91
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets {20.88} (28.58)
Investment ir: fixed deposits (200.00) -
Net cash flows {used in) investing activities {B) (220.88) {28.58}
Cash flows from financing activities
{Repayment) of hon-current borrowings {net) (5.61) {76.75)
{Repayment)proceeds of Current borrowings {net) {26.79) 76.33
Payment of intersst on borrowings {5.68) {13.73)
Payment of Commission on Financial guaraniee {1.51) : -
Fringipal payment of lease liakilities (5.50) {4.69)
Interest expenses on lease labilities {1.13} {1.36}
Net cash flows {used in) financing activities {C) {50.25) {20.20)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {4.50} 113
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 4.50 3.37
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end {refer note 12) - 4.50

"Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reporied.

Note:

1. Non cash transactions refating to investing and financing activities (Refer note 14, 24 and 38).

2. The cash fiow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS}) 7 Statement of Cash flow,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For V. C. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No: 108518W

Membership No: 110120 ST

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024

Ei

Vishal Gupta
Director
DIN 10048743

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024

EFor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Litnited

Jagdish Dargar
Director
DiN 00278065

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2024



Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in % Millions, except per share data and unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Lirited (the ‘Company’} is a private Company incorporated on July 18, 2018
and domiciled in India. The Company is subsidiary of FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited. The
registered office of the Company is located at 4-B, 4th Floor, Todi Building Mathuradas Mill Compaound,
Worli Mumbai — 400013,

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and disfribution of Kay beauty
products on the online platforms or websites such as e-commerce, m-commerce, internet as well as
through physical stores, stalls, general frade and modern trade etc.

The separate financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of
Directors and approved for issue on May 16, 2024,

The Company’s financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (%), which is the functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Million {'000,000), except when otherwise stated.

2. Material Accounting Policies
2A. Basis of preparation:
i} Statement of compliance:

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards {ind
AS}) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii) Historical cost convention:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis,
except for the following:

+ certain financial assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments)
» defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value
* share-based payments.

iy New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 23, 2023 notified Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain accounting
standards (see below), and are effective April 01, 2023,

a) Disclosure of accounting policies — amendments to Ind AS 1
b) Definition of accounting estimates amendmenis to Ind AS 8

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — amendments to Ind
AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of classifications.
These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior pericds and are not

expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

iv} New and ainended standards issued but not effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited _
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in % Millions, except per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2B. Summary of material accounting policies:

a)

b}

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Jabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ nen-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
« Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nermal operating cycle
» Held primarily for the purpose of frading
» Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or
» Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
+ ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve
moenths after the reporting period
« ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period of twelve months
as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cast comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the qualifying asset to its

working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price, :

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is
probable that future economic benedits associated with the item will fiow to the Company and
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which they are incurred. The present
vatue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met,

Cost incurred on property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is disclosed as
Capital Work-in-Progress and is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Advances paid fowards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the ret disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in ¥ Millions, except per share data and unless otherwise stated)

c)

d)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided using the Straight-Line Method based on useful lives of the assets
prescribed in Schedule |l fo the Companies Act, 2013,

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

. Computers and Hardware : 3

. Furniture and Fixtures 10

_ Office Equipment 5 :
. Leasehold improvements | Period of primary lease

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
reporting period and adjusted prospectively for any change in estimate, if appropriaie. Changes
in expecied useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. I there is any
indication of impairment based on internal / external factors, an impairment loss is recognised,
i.e. wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the assets net fair value and value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its rermaining useful life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared for the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the assets or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the assetis carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is freated as a revaluation increase.

Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for
as follows:




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{(All amounts in  Millions, except per share data and unless otherwise stated)

- Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out

basis.

- Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but

excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

- Stock in frade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out

basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

estimated costs of completion necessary to make the sale.

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the net realisable value is estimated
1o be lower than the inventory cartying value. The net realisable value is estimated taking
into account various factors, including obsolescence of material due to design change,
process change etc., unserviceable items i.e. items which cannot be used due to
deterioration in quality or due to shelf life or damaged in storage and ageing of material i.e.

slow moving/nan-maving prevailing sales prices of inventory.

e) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a coniract is, or contains, a lease.
That is, if the contract conveys the right to confrol the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a Lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets (ROU asset)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less

any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in

section (d) Impairment of non-financial assets.




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in ¥ Millions, except per share data and unless otherwise stated}

ii. Lease Habilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liahilities
measured at the present vaiue of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The [ease paymenis
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Company exercising the option to ferminate. Variable lease paymenis that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to

produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that friggers the payment
OCCUFS,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is nof readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
tiabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabiliies is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease ierm, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments} or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value assets:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of property (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of

low-value assets recognition exemption to leases where the underlying asset is considered
to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial ability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assels and liabilittes are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income {OCI), and fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial Asseis

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business medel for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in section 2B(h) Revenue from
contracts with customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in ¥ Millions, except per share data and uniess otherwise stated)

I order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCL, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the
SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the

business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash fiows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
modef with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and

selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell

the asset.

Financial Liabilltios

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement;
i. Financial assets

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four

categories:
= Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

+ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI} with

recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instrumenis)

= Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative

gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
» Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financial assets af amortised cost {debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the fellowing conditions are

met:

a) The asset is hekl within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for

collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
{EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or

toss when the asset is derecognised, modified, or impaired.
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(All amounts in ¥ Millions, except per share data and uniess otherwise stated)

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade and other receivables
and loans o employees.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt
instruments)

A financial asset’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a} The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
b} The asset's confractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair vatue. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI,
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in QOCI.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial Assets designated af fair value through OCI {equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect fo classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCIl when they meet
the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject
to impairment assessment. The Company elected to classﬁy irrevecably its non-isted
equity investments under this category.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.
The transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

ii. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recogniticn at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCl. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amariised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees
and peints paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's
statement of financial position) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recegnised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies simplified expected credit loss
{ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for frade receivables
or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 and do not contain significant
financing components.
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The Company applies generat approach for recognition of expected credit losses on all
other financtal assets. The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methedology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

-Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial agssets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settie
the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabifities on initiai
recognition, After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are equity instrumenis and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the husiness model for
managing those assets, Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The Company's senior management determines change in the business medel as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an acfivity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively
from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Original classification Revised Accounting treatment
classification

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair vaiue is measured at
reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost
and fair value is recognised in
profit or loss.

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date

becomes iis new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based
on the new gross carrying
amount.

FVTOCH Fair wvalue is measured at
reclassification date. Difference
hetween previous amortised cost
and fair value is recognised in
OCl. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

Amortised cost

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date
becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount.  However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the assef is
measured as if it had always
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9)

been measured at amortised
cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair vaiue at reclassification date
becomes its new carrying
amount, No other adjustment is
required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured
at fair value. Cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in
OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss the reclassification
daie.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
eniity expects o be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation,
The transaction price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract, This variable
consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outfiow. Revenue {net of
variable consideration) is recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable that the

amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition
is resolved.

The Company identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and
recognises revenue as and when the performance obligations are satisfied. The specific
recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products to customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange
for preducts. Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when products are delivered
to customer. Revenue is measured based on the fransaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price

concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the
custornears.

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals
for discountsfincentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based
on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers.

Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no financing
component in the contract.

Contract balances:

- Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for products or services
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring products or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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h)

- Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional {i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section -
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

- Contract liabilities .
A contract liability is the-obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideration s due} from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods
or services to the customer, a confract liability is recognised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract,

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or consiructive obligation
as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the effect of the time vaiue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the BFability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the functional
currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

(1) Initial recognition :

Fareign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

{ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar
vatuation denominated in a foreign cumrency, are transiated using the exchange rate at the
date when such value was determined.

(i) Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of other monetary items or on
reporiing monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
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i

during the pertiodfyear, or reported in previous financial statements, are recogniséd as
income or as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periodfyear in which they
arise.

Empioyee benefits
Short term employee benefits:

All short term employee benefits such as salaries, incentives, medical benefits which are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related services which entitles him to avail such benefits are
recognised on an undiscounted basis and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

FPost-employment benefits:

i.  Defined Contribution Plans:

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the periodfyear when the
contribution to the funds is due. There are no other obiigations other than the contribution
payable to the fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related servige.

ii.  Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent te 15
days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion
of five years of service. The gratuity benefits are unfunded.

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method made at the end of each financial period/year. The present value of the defined
benefii obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fuiure cash outfiows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through ‘Other
comprehensive income’ in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
rectassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to ceriain
rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future
encashment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilised leave at
each balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the
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projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately
taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The obligations are
preserted as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least 12 monihs after the reporting date,
regardless of when the actual settiement,

k} Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of
ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowing to the extent they
are regarded as adjustment to the interest cost.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes pface either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liahility, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest,

The Company uses valuation techniquies that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
obsetvable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and Kabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
+ Level 1 — Quoted {(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabifities
s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization {(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The management
assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, advances, trade payables, bank
overdraft and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due fo the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,
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m} Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alt taxable temporary differences,except:

+ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise o equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized, except::

¥hen the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible tempeorary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaiiable to aliow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed ateach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set-off current tax assets against current tax [abilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax are measured using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax and deferred tax relating fo
items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss {either in OCI
or in equity). The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Company reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by
using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method
predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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n) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
~during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o) Segment reporting

The Company drives synergy across fulfilment models, sales channels and product
categories and accordingly the Chief Operating Decision Maker {‘{CODM) reviews and
allocates resources based on Omni business and Omni channel strategy, which in the terms
of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ constitutes a single reporting segment.

p) Share capital

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of coniingent liabilities,
at the end of the reporting period. Such judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are
evaluated based on historical experience and various other factors, including estimation of the
effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the pericd in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the petiod of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Judgements:

¢ Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and fermination options - the
Company as lessee ’

The Company determines the lease ferm as the non-cancellable term of the [ease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination.
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The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancetlable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any pericds covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or nat to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of property with
shorter non-cancellable period {i.e., 3 1o 5 years). The Company typically exercises its option
to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on business if a
replacement alternate property is not readily available. The renewal periods for leases of
property with longer non-cancellable periods {i.e., 6 to 10 vears) are not included as part of the
iease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Il. Estimates and assumptions:

a.

Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the
asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived afier
determining an estimate of an asset's expecied useful life and the expected residual value at
the end of its life. The useful lives and residual vatues of assets are determined by management
at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodicaily, including at each financial
periodfyear end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

. Estimation of defined benefit obligation and compensated absences

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, compensated absences and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The mortality
rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.

Income taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
petiods.
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d. Provision

Provisions and liabiliies are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will
be a future outfiow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash
outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability
require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject .
to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and Habilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

2. Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:

The Company uses a simplified approach to determine impairment loss allowance on the
portfolio of trade receivables. This is based on its histerically observed defauli rates over the
expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant esfimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may not be
representative of customer's actual default in the future.

f. Leases — Estimating the incrementat borrowing rates:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) fo measure lease liabifities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic envirohment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘woufd 'have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.

The Company estimates the |BR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when

available and is required t¢ make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company's
credit rating).
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Note 5
Intangible assets

Particulars

Business
application
development cost

Gross carrying amount

As at April 1, 2022 1.13
Additions -
Disposals { adjustments -
As at March 31, 2023 1.13
Additions -
Disposals / adjustments -
As at March 31,2024 1.13
Accumulated amortisation

As at April 01, 2022 1.01
Amertisation charge for the year 0.12
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2023 1.13
Amortisation charge for the year -
Disposats/adjustments -
As at March 31,2024 1.13
Net carrying amount

As at March 31,2024 -
As at March 31, 2023 -
Note:

1. Refer note 41 for capital commitments.

Note 6

Right of use assets

Particulars Right of Use Assets
Gross carrying amount

As at April 01, 2022 14.07
Additions 12.07
Disposals / adjustments {1.34)
As at March 31, 2023 24.80
Additions

Disposals / adjustments (2.24}
As at March 31, 2024 22.56
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 11, 2022 9.37
Depreciation charge for the year 4.91
Disposals / adjustments {1.34)
As at March 31, 2023 12.94
Depreciation charge for the year 5.29
Disposals / adjustments (2.24)
As at March 31, 2024 15.99
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 6.57
As at March 31, 2023 11.86

Note:

1) Disposals include derecognition of ROU asset on cancellation of lease contract.
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Note 7
Non-current investments (Unquoted)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Investments in fellow subsidiary (unquoted, fully pald up}
{A) Investments in Equity Instruments of fellow subsidiary {at cost

Nykaa Foundation 0.00* Q.00

1 fully paid equity shares of T 10 sach

Total investments measured at cost 0.00* 0.0¢*
. As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.00" 0.00

Aggregate amount of impairment in valug of invesiments - -

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported,

Note 8

Income tax

The major compeonents of income tax expenses / {(credit) are:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax:
In respact of current year 39.15 2303
In respect of prior years - -
39.15 23.03
Deferred tax:
Decrease f {Increase) in deferred tax assets {0.79} {0.51)
Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities - -
{0.79) (0.51)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 38.26 22,52
OCI section - deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Tax expense on remaasurement gain of defined benefit plans (C.01) 0.1
Income tax debited to OCI {0.01} 0.01

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profif multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

y for March 31, 2024 and

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023:
For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 151.45 90.94
Applicable tax rate 2517% 2517%
Tax using the company's domestic tax rate 38.11 22.89
Tax effect of:
Corporate social responsibility 0.25 -
Others - {0.37)
Total tax expense 38.36 22.52
Current tax expense 39.15 23.03
Deferred tax expense {0.79) {0.51)
Tax expense recognized n the statement of profit and loss 38.36 22.52
Effective tax rate 25.33% 24.76%

Reconciliation of average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax 151.45 9094
Applicable tax rate 2517% 2517%
Tax effect of:

Corporate social responsibility 0.16% .00%
Others 0.00% -0.41%
Effective tax rate 25.33% 24.76%
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Gross movement In the Current Incotme Tax Assets/{Liabilities)

March 31, 2024

Particulars As at As at
i i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net income tax asset at the beginning 7.98 {1.65)
income Tax Paid {net) 28.25 32.64
Current Income tax expense {39.15) (23.03)
Met income tax asset / {llabillty) at the end {2.94) 7.96
Income tax t / {liability) as per Balance Sheet {2.94) 7.96
Deferred tax:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Expenses allowable on payment basis 0.03 0.03
Provision for expected credit loss 0.37 .03
Lease Liabilities 1.92 3.30
Others 1.13 1.17] -
Deferred tax assets {A) 3.45 4.53
Tirming difference between book depreciation and depreciation as per the Income-tax Act, 1961 0.74 262
(excluding Rol)) : )
Deferred tax liabilities {B) 0.74 2.62
Deferred tax assets (net) (C=A-B) 2.1 1.91
Recanciliation of deferred tax assets (net):
Particul As at As af
articutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening halance 1.9 1.42
Tax income recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year 0.79 0.50
Tax (expense) recognised in OCI for the year 0.01 {0.01)
Closing balance 2.71 1.9
Note 3
Other non current assets
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance for capital goods 0.49 1.54
Total 0.49 1.54
Note 10
Inventories {valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Parficulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Stock-in-trade* 79.84 40.20
Finished goods 30.55 84.71
Raw materials - 2814
Packing material - 29.48
Total 110.39 182.53

As at March 31, 2024, ¥ 3.51 Mn (March 31, 2023; ¥ 4.7 Mn) is recognised as provision taking into account various factors, including obsolescence of

material, unserviceable items and ageing of material.

Inventories have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowings, details retating to which has been described in note 21.

*includes goods in transit:
Stock-in-frade - As at March 31, 2024: T 4.34 Mn (March 31, 2023: ¥ 7.95 Mn)

[This space has been intentionally feft blank]
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HNote 11
Trads raceivables

Factlculars As at As at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Trade receivables - Unsecurad, congiderad good 85.20 123.24
Trade receivables- credil fmpalred 1.46 a1
Lass: Alowances for expecled credit 1oss (Refer note 44) {1.48) 10.11)
Total 98.29 123.24
For detals of trade receivables with related panty Refer note 40,
Mo trade or pthar raceivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointhy with any olher person.
Trade ivables aging schedul
As at March 31, 2024

Dutstanding for follewing pericds from dus date of nt Total
3 C —_9__91‘—%
Particulass urm:ltu:ut et Less than § & months - 1 year 1-2 yoars Z-3 years More than 3
months ¥ ye yed years
Undisputed Trade Receivablas - congidered goed 81.81 36.29 Q820
Undisputed Trade Recelvables — eredht impairad .64 0.30 0.36 Q.16 1.4€
Total 61.91 36.94 0.3 0.36 0,16 - 94.66
As at March 31, 2023 :
Outstanding for following parieds from due date of paymant Total
c nt but not
Particutars lldema " Less than 6 6 months - 1 yaar 1-2 years 2-3 yaars Mors than 3
months e ¥ Y years

Undi d Trade R blas - considered good 1458 10%.68 - - - - 123 24
Undisputed Trade Raceivables — Cradit Impalred Q.04 £.07 : - - - .11
Total 19.62 103.73 - - - - 123.35
Moz 12
Cash and cash equivalents
Particufars As at As at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balances with banks in cument accounts - 4.50
Total - 4.50
Note 13
Bank balance other than cash and cash aguivalents
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Daposits with orlginal maturity of more than 3 morths but less than 12 months

= With Banks 200.00 -

Total 200,04 -
Note 14
Other financial assets (current}
iParticulars As at A at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
[Financial asset at FYTFL:
Marl-to-market asset - .03
Interest sceriad on deposit but not due 0.32 -
!Total 0,32 0.03
Noie 15
Other current assets
Particulars As at Ag at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Advancas othar than capital advances
Advance to supplisrs {Unsacursd, considersd good) 107.22 48.53
Advance against expenses {Unsecured, considered goodt - 1.20
Ealance with govenment authorlties 3381 17.71
Prapaid expansas 9.92 5.91
Total 156.85 74.35
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Note 16
Equity share capital

Equity Shares
Particulars Numbets Amount
i} Authorised share capital
As at April 01, 2022 10,00,000 10.00
Increase / (decrease} during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 10,00,000 10.00
Increase f (decrease)} during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 10,00,000 10.00
il) Issued share capital
Equity shares of 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid : -

Equity shares
Partioulars Number: N Armount
As at April 1, 2022 10,00,080 10.00
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 10,00,000 10.00
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 10,00,000 10.00

a) Rights, preference and restriction aftached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of € 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be eniitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, afier
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. Each equity
shareholder s entitled to dividends as and when the Company declares and pays dividend after obtaining shareholders’ approval.

b) There are no bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back since inception immediately

preceding the reporting date.

¢) Shares helid by holding company:

Cut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company is as below;

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited {Holding Company)

5,10,000 (March 31, 2023: 5,10,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 5.10 5.10
d} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
-[Name of the shareholder No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
FSN E-Commarce Ventures Limited 5,10,000 £1.00% 5,10,000 51.00%
Katrina Kaif 4,15,000 41.50% 4,15,000 41.50%
Matrix India Entertainment Consultants Pvt Ltd 75,000 7.50% 75,000 7.50%|

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

€) Details of promoter shareholding

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares

% holding

No. of shares

% holding

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited

5,10,000

51.00%

5,10,000

51.00%

[This space has been intentionally lefi blank]
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Note 17
Other equity

{A} Other equity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

{i) Surplus in statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance 114.80 46.38
Add: Profit during the year 113.08 68.42
Closing balance (A} 227.89 114.80
{ii) Other comprehensive income

Opening balance 0.07 0.08
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (0.01) 0.01
Clesing balance (B) 0.08 0.07
(iii) Capital Contribution from Parent (Equity component)

Opening balance 11.67 11.67
Add : Additions during the year - -
Closing balance {C) 11.67 11.67
Toial (A+B+C}) 239.62 126.54

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings: Retained Earnings are the Profits / (Losses) that the Company has earned/ incurred till date, less any
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders,

(i) Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on remeasurement of defined

employee benefit plan.

(i) Contribution from parent company consists of:
Share Based Payment: FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited, the Holding company has extended its stock options program to
selected employees of subsidiaries including the Company. The fait-value of equity-settled iransactions; calculated at the date
when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model and recognized over the period in which the performance andfor

service conditions are fulfilled.

Loan frem Holding Company: Fair valuation of loans taken from parent.

Guarantee from Holding Company: Fair value of guarantee given by Holding Company for loans taken from bank.

(This space is infentionally left blank)
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Note 18 .

Baorvowings {non current}

Particulars As at As af
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Unsecured joans (carried at amortised cost)

Term loan from Bapk - 381

Total - 3.61

Term of [oan from bank:

Working capital term loan from bank is secured against second charge on all current assets, moveable property, piant and equipment both present and future. Tenure is 48 months

{including 12 months moratorium pariod) and rats of interast 7%.

Note 13
Lease liabilities (non cusrent)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31; 2023
Payable for kease labiltles {Refer note 37) 3.89 782
Total 3.89 762
Naote 20
Long term provision
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Pravigion for gratuily (Refer note 38) 086 0.08
Total 0.06 0.06
Mote 21
Boerrowings {current}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Secured
Waorking capital loan from Banks 123,69 148.67
Unsacured
Current maturity of long term dabt 3.61 5.51
Loan from Holding Company - 1.81
Total 127.30 156.09
Refer note 44 for maturity profike of above loans
Motes: .
) Warking Capital/icash credi facilitiss from Bank is secured by hypathecation of book deble, curent assets and movable Property, plant and equipment both present and future,
i} Loan is payabie on demand, Interest payable on working capital loan s MCLR adjusted with the risk spread mutually agraed between the parliss,
iy Bank Ioan contain certain financial covenants and the Company has satisiied all covenants as per the terms of Bank loan,
) As at March 31, 2024, the Company had available  76.2 Mn {March 31, 2023: 2 51,33 #in) of undrawn commitied borrowing faciiies,
v} Quarterly staterments of curmrent assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the auditedfunaudited books of accounts.
Note 22
Lease labilities {(current)
Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Payable for kease lizbilities (Refer note 37) 3.73 5.50
Total 373 3.50
Mote 23
Trade payables
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro snterprisas and small enterprises 1.14 0.24
Total cutstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 61,73 39.58
Total 62.87 39.82




Nykaa-KK Beauty Privata Limited

{Amounts in ¥ millions, except per shara data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to the financial statermnents for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2096:
The identification of Micre, Small and Madium Enterprises is based on the Management's knowledge of their skatus, Disclosure i based on the information avallable with the Company
regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devealopment Act, 2008°,

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
a) The principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier 25 at the end of 2ach accounting year, 1.14 0.24
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tarms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
&} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paymant (which have been paid but bevond the appoined day - -
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
di The amount of inferest accrued and rermaining unpaid at the end of sach aoocounting year .09 .08
&) Tha amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in he succeading years, untll such dats when the inferest dues as above are - -
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disalowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
“Nurmbers are below milian under the rounding off convention adopted by the Compary and accordingly rot reportad,
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Current but not Qutstanding for following periods from dus date of payment Total
Particulars More than 3
due Less than 1 year 12 years 2-3 years years
Total cutstanding dues of microe enterprises and small enterprises 0.1 1.03 - - - 1.4
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 28.65 33.07 - - - 81.73
and smal enterprises
Total 28.77 34.10 - - - 62.87
As at March 31, 2023
" Guerent but not Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Tatal
Farticulars More than 3
due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
Total cutstanding dues of micre enlerprises and small enterprises 012 0.09 .03 - - 39.58
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro anfarprises 15.34 24.24 - - - 0.24
and small enterprises
Total 15.46 24.33 0.03 - - 39.842
Mote 24
Other financial liabilitizs (current)
As at As at

IParticulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Financial Liabliities at amortised cost

Employee related liabilities 028 0.36
Accrued expenses 143.39 82.79
Creditors for Capital goods 0.76 -
Derivative Liabiity Q.12 -
Intgrest acerued but not dua on bormowings 0.29 0.57
Total 144.84 84.02
Movement in interest acerued but not dug on borrowings and finance charge:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Opening balanca 0.87 0.34
Interest and finance charge accrued during the year .10 14,26
Payment of interést and finance charge during the year {8.17}1 {13.73)
Closing balance 1.89 0.87
Note 25
Provisions {current)
Particulars B As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Provision for Graluity {Refer note 38) 0.04 -
Provigion for compensated absences 0.02 208
Total 306 0.05
Hote 26
Contract liabilities
As at Bs at
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Advance fram customers 0.1% 0.99
Total 19 0.99
MNote 27
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Statutory dues 24.97 3.08
Total 24.97 8.05
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Notes to Financial Staternents

Note 27

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Sale of products 882.37 605.61
Total 882.37 805.61
Within India 882.37 605.61
Qutside India -
882.37 605.61

{A} Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives its major revenue from sale of products and sale of products by selected platforms, which is a single line of business.

{B) Confract Balances

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Trade receivables

98.20 123.24
Contract liabiliies 0.19 0.99
{C) Reconciliation between the contract price and revenue from contracts with customers
Partleulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract Price 881.57 596.41
Revenue recognised in the current year from contract liabillty:

Advance from Cusiomer : .99 10.19
Revenue deferred in the current year towards unsatisfied performance obligation:

Advance from Customer {0.18) {0.99)
Revenue from operations 882.37 605.61
Nete 28
Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

() Interest Income on financial assets at amortised costs

Bank deposit 0.32 -
{b} Other non-operating income:

Foreign exchange gain (net) .70 173
Total 1.02 1.73
Note 29
Cost of material consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 57.62 59.51
Add: Purchase - 131.07
Less: Closing stock - 57.62
Total 57.62 132.96
MNote 30
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases of stock-in-trade 198.30 28.14
Total 198.30 28.14
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Note 31

Changes in inventeories of finished goods and traded goods

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Finished goods

Cpening baiance 84.71 133.14
Closing balance 30.55 84.71
54.16 48.43
Stock-In-trade
Opening balance 40.20 17.54
Closing balance 79.84 40.20
{39.64} {22.66)
Total 14.52 25.77
Note 32
Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 31.97 23.26
Grafuity expenses (Refer note 39) 0.02 0.02
Staff welfare expenses 0.15 0.52
Total 3214 28.90
Note 33
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expenses on borrowings 7.03 11.21
Interest expenses on lease Habilities 1.13 1.36
Interest expenses on inter-company borrowings 0.08 1.47
Other interest charges 0.05 0.09
Commission on financial guarantee 1.50 1.64
Other finance charge 1.99 1.58
Total 11.78 17.35
Note 34
Bepreciation and amotrtisation expense
Particuiars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Refer note 4 £.18 3.60
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 6) 5.29 4.91
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5) - 012
Total 11.47 8.63
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Note 35
Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Marketing and advertisement expenses 82.78 52.94
Beauty advisor expanses 82.20 53.04
Selling expenses 56.58 32.81
Legal and professional fees 3.3 1.75
Web and technology expenses 1.49 0.63
Cutsource manpower cost 14.83 14,12
Freight expenses 7.13 5.71
Travelling and conveyance expenses 0.52 0.13
Rates and taxes 348 570
insurance expenses 1.20 3.45
Rent and maintenance expenses 2.15 1.34
Brand usage fee 141.18 96.90
Repairs and maintenance - others 1.19 0.4z
Bank charges 0.28 0.27
Audifors remuneration :

Audit fees 0.55 0.50

Taxation matters 0.25 017

Out of pocket expenses 0.04 -
Expected credit (loss) credit impaired 1.35 -
Expenditure towards corporate social responstbility (CSR) activities (Refer note 46) 0.99 043
Miscellaneous expenses 461 4,34
Total 406.11 274.65

[This space has been intentionally leff blank]
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Mote 36
Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
MNominal value of per equity share {absolute) 104~ 10/~
Profit after fax 113.09 68.42
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 113.09 68.42
Total number of shares cutstanding during the year (nos,) 10,00,000 10,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) (nos.} 10,090,000 10,00.000
Basic EPS = (A/B) 113.09 68.42
Dilutive: effect on weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year {C} - -
Weighted average number of diluted eguity shares {C} nos. 10.00,000. 10.00,000
Diluted EPS = (A/C) 113.09 68.42

Note 37
Leases
The Company as lessee

The Company has Jease contracts for premises obtained for offices, warehouse etc. Leases of premises generally have lease terms between 3 to 5 years.

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-assst portfolio and align with the Company's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in

determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exerclsed.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under lease liabilities) and the movements during the year:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 1312 5.74
Addition - 12.05
Accretion of interest 1.13 1.36
Payments {6.63) (6.03)
Closing balance 7.62 13.12
Current 3.73 5.50
Non-current 3.89 7.62
Total 7.62 13.12
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 43,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 ranges between 10.5% to 11.5% (March 31, 2023: 10.5% 0 11.5%)
The following are the amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expenses of right of use assets 1.33 4.91
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 1.13 1.38
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 246 .27

[This space has been infentionally left blank]
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Note 38
Defined Benefit Plan and Other Long Term Employee Benefit Plan:

1)

)]

Defined Contribution Plan

During the year, the Company has made contribution/provision to provident fund stated under defined coniribution plan amounting
to € 0.06" (March 31, 2023: NIL) and the same has been recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.
*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reporied.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based
on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of feaving. The Company has provided for gratuity based on actuariai

valuation done as per projected unit credit mathod.

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's

financial statements:

i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Amount to be recognised in balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.11 0.06

Less: Fair value of plan assets - -

Funded siatus - deficit / {surplus) 0.1 0.06

Net liability recognised in balance sheet .11 0.06

Non Current 0.06 0.06

Current 0.04 0.00

Net liability recognised in balance sheet 0.11 0.06 |

if} Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars For the year endad | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation 0.06 0.05

Current service cost 002 0.02

Interest cost 0.00* ¢.00"

Actuarial {gain)lloss in obligation for year ended due to changes in financial {0.00)" {0.00)*

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)floss in cbligation for year ended due to changes in demographic (0.00)* (0.01)

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)loss in obllgatlon for year ended due to changes in experience 0.02 {0.00

adjustments

Closing defined benefit obligations 0.1 0.06

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adepted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss under

employee benefit expenses and other comprehensive income

Particujars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current service cost p.02 0.02

Interest expenses 0.00* 0.00*

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 0.02 0.02

Actuarial (Gain)/Less in cbligation for year ended due to changes in financial {0.00y {0.00)*

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)loss in obligation for year ended due to changes in demographic (0.00)y (0.01}

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)loss in obligation for year ended due to changes in experience 0.02 {0.00)

adjustments

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI} 0.02 {0.01)
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C The principal assumpftions used in determining gratmty obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mortality Table IALM {2012-14) IALM {2012-14)
Discount rate; 7.10% 7.20%
Future salary increases* 7.00% 8% until year 1
then 6.50%
Withdrawal rates 37% for managers and 0.00%

above
38% for frondine staff
IALM {2012-14)

JALM - Indian Assured Lives Mortality {Ultimate) IALM {2012-14}

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the
estimated terms of the obligations. '

*The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit cbligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date, '

The following payments are expected contributions {o the defined benefit plan In future years:

Partlculars ' As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.04 ' -
Between 2 and 5 years 0.07 0.07
Between 6 and 9 years ’ 0.01 .01
10 & Above following years 0.00 0.00
Total expected payments 0.13 0.08

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumption as of end of reporting period is shown below.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate {-/+ 1%}
Decrease by 100 basis points 0.00* 0.00™

Increase by 100 basis poinis {0.00) (0.00)*
Future salary increase [+ 1%}
Decrease by 100 basis points (0.00) {0.00)"

Increase by 100 basis points 0.00* 0.00*
*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligaticn
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporiing period and assuming there are no other
changes in the market conditions. There have been no changes from ihe previous periods in the metheds and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest risk,
(A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan liability.

{B) Longevity risk — The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
moartality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan's liability.

{C) Salary risk — The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.
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Note 39
Related party transactions
A. Names of the related parties

Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have ocourred or not

Relationship Name of entity
Holding Company FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited
Fallow Subsidiany™ FSN Brands Marketing Private Limited
Nykaa Fashion Limited {formerly known as Nykaa Fashion Private Limited)
Mykaz E-Ratall Limited {formedy known as Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited)
F3H International Limited (farmedy known as FSN Infernational Frivate Limited)
Nykaa Foundation w.e.f June 8,2022
Giractors and Key Managamsant Personnel (KMP) & Ms. Reena Chhabra — Director till August 18, 2022
Ms. Adwaita Nayar - Director il March 20, 2023
Mr. Vishal Gupta -- Director w.e.f March 30,2023
Mr. Jagdish Dargar - Director
M=, Shalini Raghavan - Director
* Where there are fransactions in current or previous year
# no transactions accurred during the currant or previous year
Particulars Nature of transactions Transactions Balance ag at | Transactions durlng |  Balance as at
during FY 2023-24 | March 31, 2024 FY 2022-23 March 31, 2023
Helding Company
FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited Loan taken (nat} {1.81) - {69.33) {t.81}
Rent expenses 8.84 - 7.8 -
Relmbursement of expenses 41.00 - 22.02 -
Interest expense .08 - 1.47 -
Furchases - - 5,89 -
Brands usage fee 70.52 {22.91) 43.45 {(17.01}
Lease liability - {7.62) - {1312}
Inierest cost on kease labllity 113 - 1.28 -
Notional commission on financiai - - 0.85 -
Quarantes
Commision - financial guarantee 1.50 - 0.79 -
Equity contribution - - - {11.67}
Fellow Subsidiary
MNykaa E-Retail Limited (formerly known as Sales {459,589} - {357.40} 3277
Mykaa E-Retall Private Limiled) Discount expenses 95.48 (1.03) 83.27 -
Recovery of comporate expense - - 475 -
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 - - -
FSN Brands Marketing Private Limited Sales (257.37) 0.44 {182.33) £82.23
Beauty advisor fees 37.55 - 29.26 -
Dizcount expenses 32.70 - 16.10 -
Raimbursemeant of expanses 0.12 - - -
Mykaa Fashion Lirited {formerly known as Reimbursement of expenses - axii] - -
Mykaa Faghion Private Limited}
FSMN International Limited {formarly known as  |Sales (7.25) {4.00) -
FSN International Private Limited) Discount expenses 1.24 | - 0.38 -
Marketing axpense 248 {0.87) 0,75 {0.18}
Nykaa Foundation Investmant 0.00" Q.00" -
) Donation 0,43 -

Figures in brackets indicates payables and income

*Mumbers are belew million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reporled.

Terms. and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from refated parties are made on terms. equivaient to those that prevail in am's length transactions. Cutstanding balances (trade receivables and

payables) at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and setlement ocours in cash,
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Note 40

Commitments and contingent liabilities

A} Commitments

The Company does not have any conirsct remaining to be exscuied on capital accouni and not provided for (net of advances).

B} Contingent liabilities
The company does not have any contingent liabilities.

Note 41

Segment information

The Company has idenfified Board of Directors and Group CEO as it's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who reviews and allocates resources based
on Omni bustness and Omni channel strategy, which in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ constitutes & single reporting segmsant.

The company operates in a single geographical environmant i.e. India.

No single external customer contributed 10% or more to Company’s revenue.

{This space has been infentionafly feft bank]
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Note 42

Financial instruments by categery and fair value hierarchy:

The fair values of assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values: The carrying values of financial assets i.e. cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
other financial assets and of financial liabilities i.e. frade and other payables and other financial liabilities are reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to the short maturities of these instruments.

. Carrying value as of

Particulars Level March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Financial Assets:

Amortised cost

Trade receivables 98.20 123.24

Cash and cash equivalents - 4.50

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 200.00 -

FVTPL

Derivative financial assets'" - 0.03

Interest Accrued but not due 0.32 -
298.52 127.77

Financial Liabilities:

Amortised cost

Borrowings 127.30 1568.70

Lease liabilifies 7.62 13.12

Trade payables ' 62.87 39.82

Other financial liabilities 144.84 84.02
342.63 296.66

M Included in other current financial assets
@ Included in other current financial liabilities

During the period ending March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements.

The carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost are reascnable approximation of their fair
values. Accordingly, the fair values of such financial assets and liabilities have not been disclosed separately.

Valuation methodology:
The fair values of assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instfrument can be exchanged in a cument

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used 10 estimate the fair values:

The valuation techniques used to determine the fair values of financial assets and financial abilities classified as level 2
include use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments and generally accepled pricing models based on
a discounted cash flow analysis using rates cusrently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts with various counterparties. The fair value
of such derivatives instruments are determined using forward exchange rates, currency basis spreads between respective
currencies, etc.
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Note 43

Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings from banks and from holding Company, trads and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance and support the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that
derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's senior management téam oversees the management of
these risks. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of thase risks, which ars summarissd balow:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk mainly comprises currency
risk, product price risk and interest sk,

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or foss item is the effect of the assumed changss in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial labilitles
held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

a) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily dus to borrowings having floating interest rates. The Company uses available working capital limits for availing short-
term working capitat demand loans with interest rates negotiated from time to tima so that the Cornpany has an effective mix of fixed and variable rate borowings, The
following table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and horrowings affected, after the impact of hedge
accounting. With all ather variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affectad through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Interest rate risk

Particulars
Increase ! decrease Effect on profit|
in basis points! before tax
March 31,2024 +50 {0.64)
-50 0.54
March 31, 2023 +50 {0.74)
: -50 .74

b) Foreign currency risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities denominated in foreign currency and thus the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables.

The year end forgign currency forward contracts and unhedgead foreign currency exposures are given below:
a) Derivatives {forward contracts) outstanding 2s at the reporting date {In respective currency):

N As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars ) Currency Foreign currency Rs. Foreign currency Rs.

Forward contracts to Purchases EUR - Trade Fayable  |Eurc 0.28 25.19 .18 16.72
biPartictlare of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reparting date (in respective currency):

- As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particutars Currency Foreign Currency Rs. Foreign Currency Rs.
Payables:

Trade payables usp - - 0.00° .04
Euro o.00* n.o0 - -

Advancas:

Advance to vendors against purchases f expense uso 0.38 zZn 0.0 0.32
CHY 0.60 6.83
Euto 0.0 .98 0.02 1.87

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accerdingly not reported.
Since the business of the Company doesn't invoives material foreign currency transactions, iis exposure to foreign currency changes is not material.

¢} Product price risk

Ins a poteniially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its product lines. Product price increases which are notin line with the levels of
customers’ discrationary spends, may affect the business! salss volumes. In such a scenario, the risk is managed by offering judicious product discounts to customers to
sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates substantially absorb the product discounts offerad fo the
customners, This helps the Company to protect itself from significant product margin losses. This mechanism also works in case of a downtum in the retail sector, although
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 2 financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade recefvables).

B S
e <O ‘{1
It I
i o i
L\E{." AGO [
Vs gt ."M




Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited
(Amounts in ¥ millions, except per share data and unlass stated otherwise)
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

a) Trade recaivables

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with only credit worthy counterparties in case of institutional customers and the credit risk exposure for instiutional customers is
managead by the Company by credit worthiness checks. The Company's experience of dalinguencies and customer disputes have been minimal. Also the Company have a
simplified approach to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfollo of trade receivables, This is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the frade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimatas. Accordingly, the credit risk is cover by the company. (Refer accounting policy 2A{g)iv) for expactad
credit ioss on trade receivabls).

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 80 days.

nt in atlowances for expected cradlt loss:

{Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balanca 0.1 o
Provision made during the year 1.35 -
IClosing balance - 1.46 0.11
b) Security deposit

The Company also camies credit risk on leage deposits with tandlords for properties taken on leases, for which agreements are signed and property possessions are taken for
operations. The risk relating to refunds after vacating the premises is managed through successiul negofiations or appropriate legal actions, where necessary.

c} Other financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved countsrpanties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterpariy credit limits are reviewed by the Company's
Board of Directors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potentiai failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is a risk that the Company may not be able to meet jis financial obligations on & timely basis through its cash and cash equivalents, and funds available by way of

committed credit facilities from banks. Management manages the liquidity risk by monitoring rolling cash flow forecasts and maturity profilas of financial assets and liabllitiss.
This menitoring includes financial ratios and takes info account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents and additional undrawn finahcing facilities.

The table bslow surmarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial fiabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars Carrying value Less than 1 year 1 t0 5 years » 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings 127.30 127,30 - - 127.30
Lezse liabilites 7.82 4.20 429 - 8.5¢
Trade payables §2.87 §2.87 - - 62.87
Other financial liabilities 144.84 144.84 - - 144.84
Total 342,63 33031 4.25 - 243.60
As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 159.70 156.08 361 - 150.70
Lease liabilities 13.12 6,64 8.58 - 15,22
Trade payables 39.82 39,82 - - 39.82
Other financial liabilities 84.02 £4.02 - - £4.02
Total 296.66 286.56 12.20 - 298.76
Note 44

Capital management

The Coimpany aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and to optimise returns to its shareholders. For the purpose of
the Corpany's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference sharas, securities premium and all other squity reserves atiributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management [s to maximise the shareholder value. The capital structure of the Company is
based on management's judgemsnt of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company consider the amount of
capital in proportion to risk and manage the capifal structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characterstics of the underdying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital stiucture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharzholders, return capital to sharehelders or issue new shares. The
Company’s policy i to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as fo maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustaln
future development and growth of its businsss. The Cormnpany will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. .

Parilculars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Gross debt 127.30 159.70
Lass: cash and cash aquivalents - {4.50)
Net debt (A} 127.30 155.20
Equity 249.82 126.54
Total equity {B) 249.62 136.54
Net gearing ratio (AM(B) . 0.51 1,14

Ma changes were mada in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the yvears ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

{This space is intentionally jeft blank}
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Mote 45
Ratie Analysis and its elements

SN

Rafie

{Mumerater

Denominator As at A at % Change Reasor for changes
March 31, 2024 Miarch 31, 2023 roeg than 25%
1 |Cument rate Current assets Currenl liabllliiss 1.53 13 1E.82%
2 |Debt equity ratioe Total Long tarm debt Shareholtders squity 051 117 =56 40% |Increase in profil durlng
1he year
3 [Debl sarvice coverage ratio Earnings for debi service = Net Debt service w Interest & Leasa BAS 475 T7.87%|Increase in profit during
prafit after taxes + Non-cagh Paymenis + Principal the year
ppereting expenses+ finance cosl  |Repaymsnts
4 |Rewm on equity ratic Het Profits after laxes Average Sharsholders Equity 58.57% GB.BTY -3.24%
& invsnlory lurnoyver raio Ciost af goods seld Average Inventory 185 095 54.03% |increase in COGS
B (Trade raceivable tumover ratio Hal cradit sales = Gross aredit Avarage Trade Racelvabla 747 2.24 -14.64%
£ales - sales return
7 |Trade payable tumover ratic Met credil purchases = Gross credit |Avarege Trade Payables 386 378 202%
purchases - purchase retum
B |Wet capital movar ratio Net zales = Tolal sales - salas Working capital = Current 4.58 &2 ~31.91%|On aceount of Increase
retwm assets - Cument liabilities in Current Assets and
Revenue
9 |Hel profit ratic Net Profit Met sales = Total sales - sales 12.82% 11.30% 1.52%
retm
10 |Ralum on capital emplyyed Eamings before inlerest and texes  |Capitel Employed = Tangibla 42.341% 35.44% T.87%
Ned Worth + Tekal Debt
Mote 46
Audit Trail

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its beoks of account which has a feature of recarding audit Irall (edil log} facility and the same has operated throughoul the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, excepl (hal audit trall fealurs is not enabled at the database level and master fields as it reletes to accounting software. The said fealure was enabled at master data levat from January 31,

2024,
The C

also uses for

ing payroll. Managermant has chiained the repon of Servica Organlsation Conlrols (SOC) audilars engaged by such third party which does not mention whether the audit

trail fealure of the said software was enablad and oparated thraughout the yaar for all relavant transactions racerded in the software o whether there wars any [pstances of the audil rail fsature being tampared with,

(This space is infentionaly fef blank)
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Note 47
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities

SN

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

a)
b)

c)

d)
e)

1}

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount spent during the year on the following in cash

i. Construction/ acquisition of any asset

ii. On purpose other than (i} above

The amount of shorifall at the end of the year oui of the amount
required to be spent by the Company during the year '

0.2¢

0.89

.43

0.43

The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts; - -
Related party transactions in relation to corperate social responsibility - -
Provision movement during the year

Reason of above shortfall Not applicable

h

Promoting education, gender equality and
health ¢care including preventive health care

Nature of CSR activities

Note 48
Other Statutory Information

i.

ii.
ifi.
iv

vi

wil.

viii.

The Company does not have any fransactions with Companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or salisfaction which is yet to be registerad with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not fraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company did not have any such transaction which is not recordad in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961).

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any cther person{s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wiiting or otherwise, that the Intermediary shalt, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsogver by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantes, sscurity or the like on behalf of the Uitimate
Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectiy, lend or invest in other persons
of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantes,
security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company under Benami Property hald under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1888 (45 of 1988} and rules made there under.
The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any Bank, financial institution or other lender.

Note 49
Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever reguired, to confirm the same with current year figures.
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